
 

 
For enquiries regarding this agenda; 

Contact: 01737 276182 
Email: democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk  

Published 12 October 2022  
 

Agenda 
Commercial Ventures 
Executive Sub-
Committee 
Thursday, 20 October 2022 at 7.05 pm 

New Council Chamber, Town Hall, Reigate 

 

This meeting will take place in the Town Hall, 
Castlefield Road, Reigate. Members of the public, 
Officers and Visiting Members may attend remotely 
or in person. 

All attendees at the meeting have personal 
responsibility for adhering to any Covid control 
measures. Attendees are welcome to wear face 
coverings if they wish. 

 
Members of the public may observe the proceedings 
live on the Council’s website. 

 

 Members: 
 T. Archer (Chair) and M. A. Brunt (Leader)  
 T. Schofield V. H. Lewanski 

 

 
Mari Roberts-Wood 
Managing Director 

 
 

mailto:democratic@reigate-banstead.gov.uk
https://reigate-banstead.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


  
1.   Apologies for absence  

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

 
2.   Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 4) 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting on 26 
September 2022 as a correct record. 

 

 
3.   Declarations of interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest.  

 
4.   Governance of Council's charitable trusts (Pages 5 - 12) 

 A recommendation to amend the terms of reference of CVESC to 
include governance of the Council’s charitable trusts (where the 
Council is the sole trustee). 

 

 
5.   Any other business  

 To consider any other urgent business. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
Our meetings 
As we would all appreciate, our meetings will be conducted in a 
spirit of mutual respect and trust, working together for the 
benefit of our Community and the Council, and in accordance 
with our Member Code of Conduct. Courtesy will be shown to 
all those taking part. 
 

 
 

Streaming of meetings 
Meetings are broadcast live on the internet and are available to 
view online for six months. A recording is retained for six years 
after the meeting. In attending any meeting, you are recognising 
that you may be filmed and consent to the live stream being 
broadcast online, and available for others to view.  
 

 
 

 

Accessibility  
The Council’s agenda and minutes are provided in English. 
However, the Council also embraces its duty to anticipate the 
need to provide documents in different formats, such as audio, 
large print or in other languages. The Council will provide such 
formats where a need is identified prior to publication or on 
request.  
 

 
Notice is given of the intention to hold any part of this meeting 
in private for consideration of any reports containing “exempt” 
information, which will be marked accordingly.  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Commercial 
Ventures Executive Sub-Committee held 
at the New Council Chamber - Town Hall, 
Reigate on  
Monday, 26 September 2022 at 6.30 pm. 
 
Present: Councillors M. A. Brunt (Leader); T. Schofield 
and V. H. Lewanski (Vice-Chair) 
 

 
16 Apologies for absence  

 
Apologies for absence were received from 
Councillor Archer. 

Councillor Lewanski chaired the meeting. 

This meeting was originally scheduled to be held on 15 September 2022 and was 
rearranged to allow for the National Period of Mourning for Her Majesty Queen 
Elizabeth II. 
 

17 Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the previous meeting on 21 July 2022 as a 
correct record. 
 

18 Declarations of interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

19 Shareholder Actions - 26 September 2022 (a) Greensand Holdings Limited  
 
The Committee as shareholder representative for Greensand Holdings Limited (‘the 
Company’) considered the report and received the Company’s Directors’ Report and 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 as set out in the 
exempt annex at Part 2 of this agenda. It considered all the actions set out in the 
Recommendations in order that the Company can meet its statutory obligations under 
the Companies Act 2006. 

It was RESOLVED that the Committee: 

(i)              Approved the re-appointment of Kreston Reeves LLP as auditor for 
Greensand Holdings Limited for the year to 31 December 2022. 

(ii)             Authorised the Directors of the Company to fix the auditors’ remuneration 
for the year to 31 December 2022 as set out in the exempt annex at Part 2 
of the agenda. 

(iii)           Authorised the Portfolio Holder for Investment and Companies to sign on 
behalf of the Council as shareholder, the shareholder ordinary resolution 

5

Agenda Item 2



Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee, Monday, 26th September, 2022  
confirming approval of recommendations (i) to (iii) as set out in the exempt 
annex at Part 2 of the agenda. 

 
20 Shareholder Actions - 26 September 2022 (b) Horley Business Park 
Development LLP  

 
This agenda item – Shareholder Actions – 26 September 2022 (b) Horley Business 
Park Development LLP – was removed from the agenda as the Accounts due to be 
received had not been finalised. This agenda item will be brought to a future meeting 
of this Committee. 
 

21 Exempt business  
 
RECOMMENDED that members of the Press and public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following item of business under Section 100A94) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that: 
  

(i)              It involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; and 

(ii)             The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 
22 Any other business  

 
There was no other business. 
 

23 Shareholder Action - 26 September 2022 (a) Greensand Holdings Limited - 
EXEMPT  

 
RESOLVED that: The Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee notes the 
exempt information in relation to the Shareholder Actions – 26 September 2022 (a) 
Greensand Holdings Limited report, as set out in the Part 2 exempt report.  
 
 

The meeting finished at 6.37 pm 
 

6

Agenda Item 2



SIGNED OFF BY Joyce Hamilton 

AUTHOR James Hitchcock  

TELEPHONE 01737276623 

EMAIL James.hitchcock@reigate-
banstead.gov.uk 

TO Commercial Ventures 
Executive Sub-Committee 

DATE 20th October 

 

EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER 

Portfolio Holder for 
Investment and Companies 

 

KEY DECISION REQUIRED N 

WARDS AFFECTED (All Wards); 
 

SUBJECT Extension of the Terms of Reference of the 
Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee to 
Cover Charitable Trusts 

 

Recommendation to Full Council  

(1) That, in accordance with Article 15 of the Constitution, Full Council approves 
the extension of the terms of reference of the Commercial Ventures Executive 
Sub-Committee, subject to paragraph (2) below, by incorporating the terms of 
reference as shown in Appendix 1 to this report. 

(2) That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to take all necessary action to finalise 
the terms of reference to be included in the Council’s Constitution and to make 
such other consequential amendments to the Constitution as the Monitoring 
Officer deems appropriate. 

(3) The Commercial Ventures Executive Sub- Committee be renamed as the 
Partner, Shareholder and Trustee Sub-Committee 

Reasons For Recommendations 

To extend the terms of reference of the Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee 
so as to allow it to review the activities of the Council’s Charities, including monitoring their 
performance, which will enable the Council to administer more effectively its responsibilities 
as the sole trustee of Charities 

Executive Summary 

 The Council is sole trustee for seventeen charitable trusts:  

7

Agenda Item 4



 
1. Churchfields Bowling Green and Public Rest Ground 
2. Colesmere Road Recreation Ground 
3. Earlswood Public Recreation Ground 
4. Furzefield Crescent Open Space  
5. Hartswood Estate Open Space 
6. Manors of Reigate and Horley Public Open Spaces 
7. Memorial Sports Ground 
8. Merstham Public Park  
9. Merstham Recreation Ground  
10. Old Town Hall 
11. Open Space and Ornamental Garden  
12. Open Space at Reigate Hill 
13. Queens Park  
14. Reigate Hill Drinking Fountain  
15. Reigate Park and Park Hill 
16. Reigate Public Baths Trust  
17. The Gatton Fund 
 
To promote good governance and to demonstrate there is a clear separation between the 
Council’s role as the Municipal Authority and the Council’s role as trustee, officers 
recommend that the terms of reference of the Commercial Ventures Executive Sub 
Committee be extended so that it fulfils    the role of trustee in the above-named charitable 
trusts where the Council is the sole trustee (“Charities”). 

The Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee has the authority to approve 
the above recommendation. 
 

Statutory Powers 

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 gives local authorities a general power of 
competence that enables them to do anything that a private individual is entitled to 
do, as long as it is not expressly prohibited by other legislation.  
 

Background 

(1) The Charity Commission is the regulator for charities in England and Wales 
and each of the Council’s charities are registered with the Commission.  
These charities are: 

• Churchfields Bowling Green and Public Rest Ground  

8

Agenda Item 4



• Colesmere Road Recreation Ground 
• Earlswood Public Recreation Ground 
• Furzefield Crescent Open Space  
• Hartswood Estate Open Space 
• Manors of Reigate and Horley Public Open Spaces 
• Memorial Sports Ground 
• Merstham Public Park  
• Merstham Recreation Ground  
• Old Town Hall 
• Open Space and Ornamental Garden  
• Open Space at Reigate Hill 
• Queens Park  
• Reigate Hill Drinking Fountain  
• Reigate Park and Park Hill 
• Reigate Public Baths Trust  
• The Gatton Fund 
 
(2) Trustees have six main duties, these are: 
 
• To ensure a charity is carrying out its purpose for the public benefit; 
• To comply with the charity’s governing document and the law; 
• To act in the charity’s best interests; 
• To manage the charity’s resources responsibly; 
• To act with reasonable skill and care; and 
• To ensure the charity is accountable 
 
(3) The Council must establish a more effective way of managing its charities and 
in particular, to do so in a way that is clearly distinct from usual Council business. In 
its capacity as sole trustee of a charity, when taking decisions on behalf of the charity, 
the Council has a duty to act in the charity’s best interests and to avoid any conflict 
between its duty to the charity and the interests it has in its capacity as the Council. 
 
(4) Inevitably, conflicts of interest may occur when the Council is a sole trustee. 
In these circumstances, the Commission expects the Council to have a system in 
place for identifying and managing conflicts of interest that arise because of its role 
as sole trustee of the charity and as the Council.  
 
 
(5) By extending the terms of reference of the Commercial Ventures Executive 
Sub-Committee, these conflicts will be effectively and transparently managed. This 
Committee would make decisions as sole trustee for each of the Council’s charities 
by considering reports from officers. 
 

Options 

1. Option 1:. To make the recommendation to Full Council as set out above. This 
is the recommended option for the reasons set out in this report.   

2. Option 2: To do nothing. This is not recommended.  

9

Agenda Item 4



Legal Implications 

(1) Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides local authorities with the power 
to do anything an individual may do, subject to a number of limitations. This is 
referred to as the ‘general power of competence’. A local authority may exercise the 
general power of competence for its own purpose, for commercial purpose and/or for 
the benefit of others. In exercising this power a local authority is still subject to its 
general duties (such as fiduciary duties it owes to its rate and local tax payers) and 
to the public law requirements to exercise the general power of competence for 
proper purpose. 
 
(2) The Charity Commission has a set of objectives, two of which are most 
relevant to this report. The first is to promote compliance by charity trustees with their 
legal obligations in exercising control and management of the administration of their 
charities. The second is to promote the effective use of charitable resources. 
 
(3) One of the Commission’s general functions is to identify and investigate 
apparent misconduct or mismanagement in the administration of charities and to take 
remedial or protective action in connection with misconduct or mismanagement in 
charities. 
 
(4) The Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee will undertake a review 
of the charitable objects of each charity and update where necessary. The validation 
and modification of a charity’s objects is governed by the Charitable Trusts 
(Validation) Act 1954. 
 
(5) Meetings of the Commercial Ventures Executive Sub-Committee will be held 
in public and will operate within the relevant Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 
Decision-making would take place at public meetings and recorded in publicly 
available minutes, with decisions made by voting, where required. 
 
(6) Except as provided by Article 4.2, which is not relevant in the present case, 
changes to the Constitution must be approved by the full Council, subject to the 
Monitoring Officer being in agreement with the proposed changes. 

Financial Implications 

 There are no financial implications. The extension of the terms of reference of this 
committee of the Executive will be managed within the Council’s existing budget. 

Equalities Implications 

Public authorities are required to have due regard to the aims of the Public Sector 
Equality Duty (Equality Act 2010) when making decisions and setting policies. The 
decisions recommended are not considered to have an impact under the Equality 
Act. 
 

Communication Implications 

10

Agenda Item 4



There are no direct communication implications as a result of this report.  

Risk Management Considerations 

There are no direct risk management implications arising from the report 

Environmental Sustainability Considerations 

There are no direct environmental sustainability implications arising from this report. 
Where decisions are made which affect the charities, the environmental implications of 
these decisions will be considered as part of the independent decision making process in 
each case. 

Policy Framework 

The recommendations of this report are consistent with the Council’s Policy Framework. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

Agenda Item 4



Appendix 1 

 

 

DRAFT AMENDMENTS TO THE TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMERCIAL 
VENTURES EXECUTIVE SUB-COMMITTEE   

 

Purpose 

 

Under the heading “Purpose”, add:- 

 

To exercise the function of the Council as a trustee of the Charities as stipulated by  relevant 
legislation including Charities Act 2011 and associated statutory guidance and any guidance 
issued by relevant regulators. 

 

Remit 

 

Under the heading “Remit”, add:- 

 

To undertake all functions of the Council as a trustee of the Charities under the Charities Act 
2011 which may include without limitation: 

 

• To ensure compliance with and further each of the Charities’ charitable objects, trust 
deeds and associated public benefit; including an annual review 

• To ensure the completion and submission of Charity Annual Account returns and the 
Charity Annual Trustee Report to the Charity Commission 

• To arrange a Trustee meeting to agree the accounts and Trustee’s Annual Report 
within two months of the financial year ending 

• To comply with best practice (Statement of Recommended Practice, SORP) to 
produce annual accounts and a report that includes an explanation of what the charity has 
done for the public benefit during the year 

• To make strategic decisions including approving annual business plans, management 
agreements and leases 

• To annually review the purposes of the Charities and make any required applications 
to amend the Charities’ governing documents to support effective management of the 
Charities 

12

Agenda Item 4



• To approve and adopt a conflict of interest policy 

• To approve disposals (leases, licences) in accordance with S117 of the 2011 Charities 
Act 2011 including: 

o To consult the public on the disposal of charity property where required to do so 

o Issue public notices regarding proposed disposal of charity property where required to 
do so. 

• To approve the formation of management companies where considered to be a 
suitable mechanism for managing a charity. This could include the charity becoming a 
member of a management company where suitable to do so. 

13

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Governance of Council's charitable trusts

